# Varnado Waterworks District Washington Parish Council Varnado, Louisiana

## Annual Financial Statements

As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 With Supplemental Information Schedules (with 2018 summarized comparative information)

## Minda B. Raybourn

Certified Public Accountant Limited Liability Company 820 11<sup>th</sup> Avenue Franklinton, Louisiana 70438 (985) 839-4413 Fax (985) 839-4402

## Annual Financial Statements As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 With Supplemental Information Schedules (with 2018 summarized comparative information)

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Statement	Schedule	Page
Independent Auditor's Report			3
Required Supplemental Information			
Management's Discussion and Analysis:			
Financial Highlights Overview of Annual Financial Report Financial Analysis Condensed Statements of Net Position Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position Budgetary Highlights Other Significant Trends and Account Changes Capital Assets Long-Term Obligations Future Economic Plans.			7 7 8 9 10 11 12 13
Business-Type Financial Statements:			
Statement of Net Position Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position Statement of Cash Flows	B C		16 17
Notes to the Financial Statements			19
Other Supplemental Information:			
Budgetary Comparison Schedule Schedule of Insurance Schedule of Compensation Paid Board of Commissioners Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head. Schedule of Water Rates and Number of Water Customers		2 3 4	38 39 40
Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and On Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with <i>Government Auditing Standards</i>			42
Schedule of Current Year Audit Findings and Responses			
Independent Accountant's Report on Agreed-Upon Procedures			1-2

## Minda B. Raybourn

Certified Public Accountant Limited Liability Company 820 11<sup>th</sup> Avenue Franklinton, Louisiana 70438 (985) 839-4413 Fax (985) 839-4402

Member AICPA Member LCPA

### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Commissioners Varnado Waterworks District Washington Parish Council Varnado, LA

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Varnado Waterworks District, a component unit of the Washington Parish Government, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

## Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

## Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Audit Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinions.

## Opinions

In my opinion, the financial statements referred above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities, of the Varnado Waterworks District, as of December 31, 2019, and 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

## **Other Matters**

## Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 5 through 12 and page 35 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. I have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial statements. I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide me with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

## Other Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Varnado Waterworks District's basic financial statements. The other supplementary information listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to the agency head are the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements themselves, and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In my opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the report of the other auditors, the schedule of compensation, benefits, and other payments to the agency heads are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The schedule of insurance, schedule of compensation paid to the Board of Commissioners, and schedule of water rates and number of water customers is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on them.

## Other Reporting Required by Governmental Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Governmental Auditing Standards*, I have also issued my report dated October 20, 2020, on my consideration of the Varnado Waterworks District's internal control over financial reporting and on my testes of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Governmental Auditing Standards* in considering Varnado Waterworks District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Mínda Raybourn

Franklinton, LA October 20, 2020 Required Supplemental Information Management's Discussion and Analysis

### Management's Discussion and Analysis As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (with 2018 summarized comparative information)

### Introduction

The Varnado Waterworks District (the District) is pleased to present its Annual Financial Statements developed in compliance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, *Basic Financial Statements - Management's Discussion and Analysis - For State and Local Governments* (GASB 34), as amended. The amendment of GASB 34, including the adoption of GASB Statement No. 63, *Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position*, and applicable standards as more fully described in the financial statement footnotes as *Footnote 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – Section A "Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation."* 

The District's discussion and analysis is designed to (a) assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues, (b) provide an overview of the District's financial activity, (c) identify changes in the District's financial position, (d) identify any significant variations from the District's financial plan, and (e) identify individual fund issues or concerns.

Since Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is designed to focus on the current year's activities, resulting changes, and currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the District's financial statements in this report.

### Financial Highlights

At December 31, 2019, total assets were \$6,342,202 and exceeded liabilities in the amount of \$3,147,426 (i.e., net position). Of the total net position, \$963,785 was unrestricted and available to support short-term operations, with a \$2,102,347 balance invested in capital assets, net of related debt and \$81,294 in restricted net position for customer deposit activity and debt service.

For the year ended December 31, 2019, user fee revenues (water sales) increased to \$830,040 compared to \$817,509 for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2019.

The District's operating expenses, other than depreciation expense, increased by approximately 11 percent or \$73,128 from the prior fiscal year. The increase was attributable to an increase in repairs in maintenance (increase of \$14,404), salaries and wages (increase of \$43,449), and maintenance supplies (increase of \$14,221). Depreciation expense decreased by \$16,103

Total long-term debt decreased by principal payments and refunding of debt of \$94,106. Interest payments of \$119,716 were made. Bond issuance costs of \$95,133 were recognized due to the refunding of debt. Total long-term debt was \$3,046,799 at December 31, 2019, and \$3,140,815 at December 31, 2018.

#### Management's Discussion and Analysis As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (with 2018 summarized comparative information)

#### **Overview of the Annual Financial Report**

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) serves as an introduction to the basic financial statements and supplementary information. The MD&A presents an overview of management's examination and analysis of Varnado Waterworks District's financial condition and performance.

The financial statements report information on the District using full accrual accounting methods similar to those used in the private business sector. Financial statements include the Statement of Net Position; Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and the Statement of Cash Flows. The Statement of Net Position provides information about the nature and amount of the District's resources and obligations at year-end and provides a basis for evaluating the capital structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, account for the revenues and expenses for the fiscal year and provide information on how net position changed during the year. This statement measures the success of the District's operations in a format that can be used to determine if the District has recovered its costs through user fees and other charges.

The Statement of Cash Flows reports cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investing, and financing activities, and provides information on the source of cash receipts, what the cash was used for, and the total change in cash for the reporting period.

The notes to the financial statements provide required disclosures essential to an understanding of the financial statements. The notes present information about the District's accounting policies, significant account balances, and activities, commitments, contingencies, and subsequent events, if any. Supplementary information includes a comparative budget schedule and key information schedules on operation of the District.

### **Financial Analysis**

The purpose of financial analysis is to help determine whether Varnado Waterworks District is better off as a result of the current year's activities. In this analysis, data from two of the basic financial statements, the Statement of Net Position, and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, is presented below in a condensed format. These statements report the net position, the difference between assets and liabilities, and the change in net position, which provides information for indicating the financial condition of the District. Following these statements is a separate schedule summarizing and analyzing budget changes for the current fiscal year.

#### Management's Discussion and Analysis As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (with 2018 summarized comparative information)

## Condensed Statements of Net Position 2019 and 2018

	2019		2018	Dollar Change	Percentage Change
Assets:					
Current and Other Assets	\$ 1,193,056	\$	1,249,044	\$ (55,988)	-4%
Capital Assets	 5,149,146	_	5,280,936	 (131,790)	-2%
T otal Assets	 6,342,202		6,529,980	 (187,778)	-3%
Liabilities:					
Long-Term Debt Outstanding	2,977,799		3,039,438	(61,639)	-2%
Other Liabilities	 216,976		257,162	 (40,186)	-16%
T otal Liabilities	 3,194,775		3,296,600	 (101,825)	-3%
Net Position:					
Investment in Capital Assets	2,102,347		2,140,121	(37,774)	-2%
Restricted for Capital Activity and Debt Service	81,294		305,601	(224,307)	-73%
Unrestricted	 963,785		787,658	 176,127	22%
Total Net Position	\$ 3,147,426	\$	3,233,380	\$ (85,954)	-3%

"Current and Other Assets" decreased by \$55,988 or four percent, resulting primarily from a \$39,038 decrease in cash and cash equivalents and a \$24,532 decrease in intergovernmental receivables.

Capital Assets decreased by approximately three percent or \$131,790 as a result of the acquisition of new equipment, engineering costs on the Mitch Road well construction, and depreciation expense.

Total Long-Term Debt decreased \$61,639 due to principal payments and the bond refinancing that occurred during the fiscal year.

Other Liabilities decreased 16 percent or \$40,186 primarily due a decrease in accounts payable of \$19,522 and a decrease of \$32,377 in the current portion of the revenue bonds payable.

#### Management's Discussion and Analysis As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (with 2018 summarized comparative information)

## Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 2019 and 2018

		Year ended December 31, 2019		Year ended ecember 31, 2018		Dollar Change	Percentage Change
Revenues:	-				_		
Operating Revenues	\$	1,080,089 \$	\$	1,028,016	\$	52,073	5%
Nonoperating Revenues	_	43,934		29,569	_	14,365	49%
Total Revenues	_	1,124,022		1,057,585	_	66,437	6%
Expenses: Depreciation Expense Other Operating Expense Nonoperating Expense Total Expenses	-	240,339 754,787 214,850 1,209,976		256,442 681,659 131,203 1,069,304	_	(16,103) 73,128 83,647 140,672	-6% 11% 64% 13%
Changes in Net Position	-	(85,954)	_	(11,719)	_	(74,235)	633%
Beginning Net Position	_	3,233,380		3,245,099		(11,719)	0%
Ending Net Position	\$	3,147,426 \$	\$	3,233,380	\$	(85,954)	-3%

While the Statement of Net Position shows the change in financial position of net position, the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position provides answers to the nature and scope of these changes. The above table gives an indication of how Varnado Waterworks District is being conservatively managed.

Total operating revenues (including water sales and revenues related to providing water and related services to customers) increased by five percent or \$52,073. Billing fees form Bogue Lusa Waterworks District and Washington Parish Gas District Number One increased \$43,279. This was due to the increase in contract labor fees to Bogue Lusa Waterworks District. Non-operating Revenues increased by \$14,365.

Total operating expenses, other than depreciation and amortization expense, increased by approximately eleven percent or \$73,128 from the prior fiscal year. The increase was attributable to an increase in repairs in maintenance (increase of \$14,404), salaries and wages (increase of \$43,449), and maintenance supplies (increase of \$14,221). Depreciation expense decreased by \$16,103. Nonoperating expense increased \$83,647. This was due to bond issuance costs related to the bond refunding that occurred during the fiscal year.

#### Management's Discussion and Analysis As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (with 2018 summarized comparative information)

#### **Budgetary Highlights**

Varnado Waterworks District adopts an annual operating budget in accordance with requirements of the United States Department of Agriculture, Rural Utilities Service and current bond covenants. This budget provides an estimate for the current fiscal year of the proposed expenditures and the revenues that will finance the operations of the District. The operating budget is adopted before the end of the prior fiscal year and is amended by the Board of Commissioners after review of monthly budget-to-actual financial reports. A summary of the approved budget is presented below in a condensed format summarizing major revenue and expenditure categories and is followed by analysis of significant variations between budget and actual amounts. Although not presented as a part of the basic financial statements, a more detailed schedule is also presented in "Schedule 1 - Budgetary Comparison Schedule," as supplementary information, following the footnotes to the financial statements.

#### Budget vs. Actual - Fiscal Year ended December 31, 2019

Revenues:	-	Budget Year ended December 31, 2019	Actual Year ended December 31, 2019	Favorable (Unfavorable) Variance
Operating Revenues	\$	1,066,400	\$ 1,080,089	\$ 13,689
Nonoperating Revenues		40,900	43,934	3,034
Total Revenues	-	1,107,300	1,124,022	16,722
Expenses:				
Depreciation Expense		255,000	240,339	(14,661)
Other Operating Expense		774,725	754,787	(19,938)
Nonoperating Expense	_	132,500	214,850	82,350
Total Expenses		1,162,225	1,209,976	47,751
Income (Loss) Before Contributions	-	(54,925)	(85,954)	(31,029)
Capital Contributions	_	-		-
Changes in Net Position	\$	(54,925)	\$ (85,954)	\$ (31,029)

Significant variant of the budget to actual results include the following:

- 1. Total actual revenues were slightly higher than budgeted revenues due to increases in water sales and billing fees to Bogue Lusa Waterworks.
- 2. Total actual expenses were higher than budgeted expenses due to bond issuance costs related to the bond refinancing.

#### Management's Discussion and Analysis As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (with 2018 summarized comparative information)

#### **Other Significant Trends and Account Changes**

Included within this section is first, a listing and analysis of general trends and operating data affecting the operation of the District. This is followed by an analysis of any significant account changes, not included within other sections of the Management's Discussion and Analysis.

#### **General Operating Data**

	December 31, 2019	December 31, 2018	Increase (Decrease)
Customers			
Residential	1,702	1,677	25
Commercial	22	22	-
Schools	6	6	-
Prison	1	1	-
Total Customers	1,731	1,706	25

One key measure of a water district's profitability, and the ability to generate positive cash flows, is the ability of the water system to collect accounts receivable on a timely basis. Presented below is an aged receivable listing for the fiscal years ending December 31, 2019 and 2018.

	Year Ended December 31, 2019	_	Year Ended December 31, 2018		Increase (Decrease)
Accounts Receivable					
Current	\$ 69,190	\$	67,411	\$	1,779
31-60 Days Past Due	4,557		4,384		173
61-90 Days Past Due	1,827		2,172		(345)
Over 90 Days Past Due	1,940	_	(971)		2,911
Subtotal	77,514	-	72,996	-	4,518
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts	(4,847)	_	(2,344)		(2,503)
Net Accounts Receivable	\$ 72,667	\$	70,652	\$	2,015

The above presentation is before consideration of accrued billings at fiscal year-end.

#### Management's Discussion and Analysis As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (with 2018 summarized comparative information)

#### **Capital Assets and Debt Administration**

#### **Capital Assets**

At the end of the fiscal year ending December 31, 2019, Varnado Waterworks District had \$5,149,146 (net of accumulated depreciation) recorded in capital assets. This includes the water systems and improvements, the office building and storage for the water system equipment, land, and other equipment used to operate the water system. The changes in capital assets are presented in the table below.

		December 31, 2019		December 31, 2018	_	Increase (Decrease)	Percentage Change
Capital Assets	-						
Land	\$	105,512 \$	\$	105,512	\$	-	0%
Construction in Progress		74,093		-		74,093	100%
Buildings		151,180		151,180		-	0%
Equipment		271,715		259,669		12,046	5%
Vehicles		113,953		107,078		6,875	6%
Utility System	_	9,632,538	_	9,617,002	_	15,536	0%
Subtotal	-	10,348,991	_	10,240,441		108,550	1%
Less: Accumulated Depreciation	_	(5,199,845)	_	(4,959,505)	_	(240,340)	5%
Net Capital Assets	\$	5,149,146	\$	5,280,936	\$_	(131,790)	-2%

Capital Assets decreased by approximately two percent or \$131,790 as a result of the following activity:

- 1) A new directional bore for \$15,536
- 2) A trailer purchased for \$6,875
- 3) New equipment for \$12,045
- 4) Construction in progress related to the new well on Mitch Road for \$74,093, and
- 5) Current year depreciation of \$240,340.

#### Management's Discussion and Analysis As of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (with 2018 summarized comparative information)

#### **Long-Term Obligations**

The primary source of long-term financing for Varnado Waterworks District has been revenue bonds financed by the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA). During 2011, the District obtained financing of \$462,000 (Series 2011 Refunding Bonds) from a private lender, and with funds provided by the District, paid \$522,045 to refund the USDA 1988 Series Bonds. Interest rates for long-term debt financed through USDA are 4.125%, and 4.2% for the Series 2011 Refunding Bonds. During the year ending December 31, 2019, the District issued \$2,920,000 in Water Refunding bonds, Series 2019 at a discount of \$56,202 with the purpose of refunding outstanding USDA bonds and paying the costs of issuance. The District refunded the outstanding \$551,945 Loan 07 and \$2,324,581 Loan 08 USDA water revenue bonds with the Series 2019 bond proceeds and an additional \$108,638 from a prior reserve fund. The interest rates for the long-term debt financed for the Series 2019 Water Refunding bonds ranges from 2% to 3%.

Bonds financed for Varnado Waterworks District include a specific requirement to maintain "Net Revenues" at 120 percent of the level required to fund annual debt service requirements. As noted in the last paragraph of *Footnote* 8 - Flow of *Funds*, *Restrictions on Use*, the District did meet the "Net Revenues" requirement. Total long-term debt for the current and prior fiscal year is as follows:

	Ι	December 31,		December 31,
		2019	_	2018
Total Long-Term Debt	\$	3,046,799	\$	3,140,815

### **Future Economic Plans**

The District continually evaluates the needs of its customers and considers projects that will improve the water supply and provide additional service to customers. The approach of the board is to maintain a rate structure that is reasonable but that provides for optimum operation of the District.

### **Requests for Information**

The financial report is designed to provide an overview of Varnado Waterworks District's finances and demonstrate the District's accountability. If you have questions regarding this report or need additional information, contact the District at 26070 Highway 21, Angie, LA 70426. The phone number for the District is (985) 735-1669.

**Financial Statements** 

## Varnado Waterworks District Statement of Net Position As of December 31, 2019 (With Comparative Totals as of December 31, 2018)

	 2019		2018
Assets			
Current Assets:			
Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$ 548,638	\$	371,315
Investments	342,116		340,128
Receivables, Net			
Accounts	86,144		83,363
Intergovernmental	28,344		52,876
Prepaid Insurance	 11,817		9,004
Total Current Assets	 1,017,059		856,686
Restricted Assets:			
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents	175,997		392,358
Restricted Investments	-		-
Total Restricted Assets	 175,997		392,358
Property, Plant, and Equipment			
Land	105,512		105,512
Construction in Progress	74,093		-
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net	4,969,541		5,175,424
Total Property, Plant, and Equipment	 5,149,146		5,280,936
Total Assets	6,342,202		6,529,980
Liabilities			
Current Liabilities (Payable From Current Assets):			
Accounts Payable	25,056		44,578
Other Accrued Payables	19,522		20,317
Total Current Liabilities (Payable From Current Assets)	 44,577	·	64,895
Current Liabilities (Payable From Restricted Assets):			
Customer Deposits	94,703		86,757
Revenue Bonds Payable	69,000		101,377
Accrued Interest on Bonds Payable	8,696		4,133
Total Current Liabilities (Payable From Restricted Assets)	 172,399		192,267
Long Term Liabilities: Bonds Payable	2,977,799		3,039,438
Total Long Term Liabilities	 2,977,799		3,039,438
-			
Total Liabilities	 3,194,775		3,296,600
Net Position			
Investment in Capital Assets	2,102,347		2,140,121
Restricted for:			
Capital Activity and Debt Service	81,294		305,601
Unrestricted	 963,785	- <u> </u>	787,658
Total Net Position	\$ 3,147,426	\$	3,233,380

#### Varnado Waterworks District Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2018)

Operating Revenues         Salos         \$ \$30,040         \$ \$17,509           Installations         7,200         6,900           Penalties         19,756         19,628           Billing Fees         211,340         168,061           Reconnect Fees         5,625         5,350           Other         6,128         10,568           Total Operating Expenses         1,080,089         1,028,016           Advertising         2,191         -           Bad Debts         4,371         3,310           Conventions & Seminars         -         392           Depreciation         240,339         226,442           Director's Fees         3,060         3,220           Employee Benefits         5,6658         52,118           Insurance         45,982         46,423           Contract - Meter Specialist         21,115         23,341           Office Expense         19,755         19,704           Professional Fees         20,547         24,255           Repairs and Maintenance         63,432         49,211           Telephone         5,818         5,840           Travel         22,97         761           Uniforms         5		 2018	2018
Installations         7,200         6,900           Penalties         19,756         19,628           Billing Fees         211,340         168,061           Reconnect Fees         5,625         5,350           Other         6,128         10,568           Total Operating Expenses         4,391            Advertising         2,191         -           Bad Debts         4,371         3,310           Conventions & Seminars         -         392           Depreciation         240,339         256,442           Director's Fees         3,060         3,220           Employee Benefits         56,658         52,118           Insurance         45,982         46,423           Contract - Meter Specialist         21,115         23,341           Office Expense         19,755         19,704           Professional Fees         20,547         24,220           Payroll Taxes         20,547         24,225           Supplies - Maintenance         63,432         49,211           Telephone         5,818         5,840           Travel         229         761           Utilities         7,855         78,604			
Penalties         19,756         19,628           Billing Fees         211,340         108,061           Reconnect Fees         5,625         5,350           Other         6,128         10,568           Total Operating Expenses         1,080,089         1,028,016           Operating Expenses         4,371         3,310           Conventions & Seminars         -         392           Depreciation         240,339         256,442           Director's Fees         3,060         3,220           Employee Benefits         56,658         52,118           Insurance         45,982         46,423           Contract - Meter Specialist         21,115         23,341           Oftice Expense         15,448         18,197           Other         8,638         6,145           Paryroll Taxes         24,120         20,727           Permits         19,755         19,704           Professional Fees         20,547         24,255           Supplies - Maintenance         63,432         49,211           Telephone         5,818         5,840           Travel         229         761           Uniforms         5,525         4,624		\$	-
Billing Fees         211,340         168,061           Recommet Fees         5,625         5,350           Other         6,128         10,568           Total Operating Revenues         1,080,089         1,028,016           Operating Expenses         4,371         3,310           Advertising         2,191         -           Bad Debts         4,371         3,310           Conventions & Seminars         -         392           Depreciation         240,339         256,442           Director's Fees         3,060         3,220           Employee Benefits         56,658         52,118           Insurace         45,982         46,423           Contract - Meter Specialist         21,115         23,341           Office Expense         15,448         18,197           Other         8,638         6,145           Payroll Taxes         24,120         20,727           Permits         19,755         19,704           Professional Fees         20,547         24,255           Repairs and Maintenance         63,432         49,211           Supplies - Maintenance         53,432         49,211           Toteloptone         5,818			
Reconnect Fees         5,625         5,350           Other         6,128         10,568           Total Operating Revenues         1,080,089         1,028,016           Operating Expenses         4,371         3,310           Advertising         2,191         -           Bad Debts         4,371         3,310           Conventions & Seminars         -         392           Depreciation         240,339         256,442           Director's Fees         3,060         3,220           Employee Benefits         56,658         52,118           Insurance         24,115         23,341           Office Expense         15,448         18,197           Other         8,638         6,145           Payroll Taxes         24,120         20,727           Permits         19,755         19,704           Professional Fees         20,547         24,255           Supplies - Maintenance         62,550         48,146           Salaries and Wages         312,694         269,245           Supplies - Maintenance         63,432         49,211           Tavel         229         761           Uniforms         5,525         4,624     <			
Other         6,128         10,568           Total Operating Expenses         1,080,089         1,028,016           Operating Expenses         4,371         3,310           Advertising         2,191         -           Bad Debts         4,371         3,310           Conventions & Seminars         -         392           Depreciation         240,339         256,442           Director's Fees         3,060         3,220           Employee Benefits         56,658         52,118           Insurance         45,982         46,423           Contract - Meter Specialist         21,115         23,341           Office Expense         15,448         18,197           Other         8,638         6,145           Payroll Taxes         24,120         20,727           Permits         19,755         19,704           Professional Fees         20,547         24,255           Repairs and Maintenance         62,350         48,146           Starlitensance         63,432         49,211           Telephone         5,818         5,840           Travel         229         761           Utilitices         72,855         78,041     <	-		-
Total Operating Revenues         1,080,089         1,028,016           Operating Expenses         2,191         -           Advertising         2,191         -           Bad Debts         4,371         3,310           Conventions & Seminars         -         392           Depreciation         240,339         256,442           Director's Fees         3,060         3,220           Employee Benefits         56,658         52,118           Insurance         45,982         46,423           Contract - Meter Specialist         21,115         23,341           Office Expense         15,448         18,197           Other         8,638         6,145           Payroll Taxes         24,120         20,727           Permits         19,755         19,704           Professional Fees         20,547         24,255           Repairs and Maintenance         62,550         48,146           Salaries and Wages         312,694         269,245           Supplies - Maintenance         5,818         5,840           Travel         229         761           Uniforms         5,525         4,624           Uhiforms         5,525         78,		5,625	
Operating Expenses         2,191         -           Bad Debts         4,371         3,310           Conventions & Seminars         -         392           Depreciation         240,339         256,442           Director's Fees         3,060         3,220           Employee Benefits         56,658         52,118           Insurance         45,982         46,423           Contract - Meter Specialist         21,115         23,341           Office Expense         15,448         18,197           Other         8,638         6,145           Payroll Taxes         24,120         20,727           Permits         19,755         19,704           Professional Fees         20,547         24,255           Repairs and Maintenance         62,350         48,146           Salaries and Wages         312,694         269,245           Supplies - Maintenance         63,432         49,211           Telephone         5,818         5,840           Travel         229         761           Uniforms         5,525         4,624           Utilities         72,855         78,041           Vehicle Expenses         995,126         938,101 <td></td> <td> · · · · · ·</td> <td></td>		 · · · · · ·	
Advertising       2,191       -         Bad Debts       4,371       3,310         Conventions & Seminars       -       392         Depreciation       240,339       256,442         Director's Fees       3,060       3,220         Employce Benefits       56,658       52,118         Insurance       45,982       46,423         Contract - Meter Specialist       21,115       23,341         Office Expense       15,448       18,197         Other       8,638       6,145         Payroll Taxes       24,120       20,727         Permits       19,755       19,704         Professional Fees       20,547       24,255         Repairs and Maintenance       63,432       49,211         Telephone       5,818       5,840         Travel       229       761         Uniforms       5,525       4,624         Uniforms       5,525       4,624         Utilities       72,855       78,041         Vehicle Expenses       995,126       938,101         Operating Expenses       995,126       938,101         Operating Expenses       (119,716)       (13,203)         Opera	Total Operating Revenues	 1,080,089	1,028,016
Bad Debts         4,371         3,310           Conventions & Seminars         -         392           Depreciation         240,339         256,442           Director's Fees         3,060         3,220           Employee Benefits         56,658         52,118           Insurance         45,982         46,423           Contract - Meter Specialist         21,115         23,341           Office Expense         15,448         18,197           Other         8,638         6,145           Payroll Taxes         24,120         20,727           Permits         19,755         19,704           Professional Fees         20,547         24,255           Repairs and Maintenance         62,550         48,146           Salaries and Wages         312,694         269,245           Supplies - Maintenance         63,432         49,211           Talephone         5,525         4,624           Utilities         72,855         78,041           Vehicle Expenses         72,855         78,041           Vehicle Expenses         995,126         938,101           Operating Expenses         995,126         938,101           Operating Expenses         <			
Conventions & Seminars         -         392           Depreciation         240,339         256,442           Director's Fees         3,660         3,220           Employee Benefits         56,658         52,118           Insurance         45,982         46,423           Contract - Meter Specialist         21,115         23,341           Office Expense         15,448         18,197           Other         8,638         6,145           Payroll Taxes         24,120         20,727           Permits         19,755         19,704           Professional Fees         20,547         24,255           Repairs and Maintenance         62,550         48,146           Salaries and Wages         312,694         269,245           Supplies - Maintenance         63,432         49,211           Telephone         5,818         5,840           Travel         229         761           Uniforms         5,525         4,624           Utilities         72,855         78,041           Vehicle Expenses         995,126         938,101           Operating Income (Loss)         84,963         89,915           Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)         <	-		-
Depreciation         240,339         256,442           Director's Fees         3,060         3,220           Employee Benefits         56,658         52,118           Insurance         45,982         46,423           Contract - Meter Specialist         21,115         23,341           Office Expense         15,448         18,197           Other         8,638         6,145           Payroll Taxes         24,120         20,727           Permits         19,755         19,074           Professional Fees         20,547         24,255           Repairs and Maintenance         62,550         48,146           Salaries and Wages         312,694         269,245           Supplies - Maintenance         5,818         5,840           Travel         229         761           Uniforms         5,525         4,624           Utilities         72,855         78,041           Vehicle Expenses         995,126         938,101           Operating Income (Loss)         84,963         89,915           Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)         -         11,086           Interest Expense         (119,716)         (131,203)           Operating Income (Los		4,371	
Director's Fees         3,060         3,220           Employee Benefits         56,658         52,118           Insurance         45,982         46,423           Contract - Meter Specialist         21,115         23,341           Office Expense         15,448         18,197           Other         8,638         6,145           Payroll Taxes         24,120         20,727           Permits         19,755         19,704           Professional Fees         20,547         24,255           Repairs and Maintenance         62,550         48,146           Salarics and Wages         312,694         269,245           Supplies - Maintenance         63,432         49,211           Telephone         5,818         5,840           Travel         229         761           Uniforms         5,525         4,624           Utilities         72,855         78,041           Vehicle Expenses         995,126         938,101           Operating Income (Loss)         84,963         89,915           Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)         -         11,086           Interest Income         13,748         6,747           Interest Repense		-	
Employee Benefits         56,658         52,118           Insurance         45,982         46,423           Contract - Meter Specialist         21,115         23,341           Office Expense         15,448         18,197           Other         8,638         6,145           Payroll Taxes         24,120         20,727           Permits         19,755         19,704           Professional Fees         20,547         24,225           Repairs and Maintenance         62,550         48,146           Salaries and Wages         312,694         269,245           Supplies - Maintenance         63,432         49,211           Telephone         5,818         5,840           Travel         229         761           Uniforms         72,855         78,041           Vehicle Expenses         995,126         938,101           Operating Income (Loss)         84,963         89,915           Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)         -         11,086           Interest Expense         (119,716)         (131,203)           Bond Issuance Costs Incurred         (95,133)         -           Other Income         30,185         11,736           Total Non	-		
Insurance         45,982         46,423           Contract - Meter Specialist         21,115         23,341           Office Expense         15,448         18,197           Other         8,638         6,145           Payroll Taxes         24,120         20,727           Permits         19,755         19,704           Professional Fees         20,547         24,225           Repairs and Maintenance         62,550         48,146           Salaries and Wages         312,694         269,245           Supplies - Maintenance         63,432         49,211           Telephone         5,818         5,840           Travel         229         761           Uniforms         5,525         4,624           Utilities         72,855         78,041           Vehicle Expenses         995,126         938,101           Fuel         8,660         7,859           Truck         1,139         100           Total Operating Expenses         995,126         938,101           Operating Income (Loss)         84,963         89,915           Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)         -         11,086           Interest Expense         (119,716)			
Contract - Meter Specialist         21,115         23,341           Office Expense         15,448         18,197           Other         8,638         6,145           Payroll Taxes         24,120         20,727           Permits         19,755         19,704           Professional Fees         20,547         24,225           Repairs and Maintenance         62,550         48,146           Salaries and Wages         312,694         269,245           Supplies - Maintenance         63,432         49,211           Telephone         5,818         5,840           Travel         229         761           Uniforms         5,525         4,624           Utilities         72,855         78,041           Vehicle Expenses         72,855         78,041           Vehicle Expenses         995,126         938,101           Operating Expenses         995,126         938,101           Operating Income (Loss)         84,963         89,915           Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)         -         11,086           Interest Income         13,748         6,747           Interest Income         30,185         11,736           Other Income		56,658	
Office Expense         15,448         18,197           Other         8,638         6,145           Payroll Taxes         24,120         20,727           Permits         19,755         19,704           Professional Fees         20,547         24,255           Repairs and Maintenance         62,550         48,146           Salaries and Wages         312,694         269,245           Supplies - Maintenance         63,432         49,211           Telephone         5,818         5,840           Travel         229         761           Uniforms         5,525         4,624           Utilities         72,855         78,041           Vehicle Expenses         72,855         78,041           Vehicle Expenses         995,126         938,101           Operating Expenses         995,126         938,101           Operating Revenues (Expenses)         -         11,086           Interest Income         13,748         6,747           Interest Income         13,748         6,747           Interest Expense         (119,716)         (131,203)           Bond Issuance Costs Incurred         (95,133)         -           Other Income <td< td=""><td>Insurance</td><td>45,982</td><td>46,423</td></td<>	Insurance	45,982	46,423
Other         8,638         6,145           Payroll Taxes         24,120         20,727           Permits         19,755         19,704           Professional Fees         20,547         24,255           Repairs and Maintenance         62,550         48,146           Salaries and Wages         312,694         269,245           Supplies - Maintenance         63,432         49,211           Telephone         5,818         5,840           Travel         229         761           Uniforms         5,525         4,624           Utilities         72,855         78,041           Vehicle Expenses         72,855         78,041           Fuel         8,660         7,859           Truck         1,139         100 <b>Total Operating Expenses</b> 995,126         938,101 <b>Operating Revenues (Expenses)</b> 11,086         11,086           Interest Income         13,748         6,747           Interest Expense         (119,716)         (131,203)           Bond Issuance Costs Incurred         (95,133)         -           Other Income         30,185         11,736           Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)	Contract - Meter Specialist	21,115	23,341
Payroll Taxes       24,120       20,727         Permits       19,755       19,704         Professional Fees       20,547       24,255         Repairs and Maintenance       62,550       48,146         Salaries and Wages       312,694       269,245         Supplies - Maintenance       63,432       49,211         Telephone       5,818       5,840         Travel       229       761         Uniforms       5,525       4,624         Utilities       72,855       78,041         Vehicle Expenses       7       995,126         Fuel       8,660       7,859         Truck       1,139       100         Total Operating Expenses       995,126       938,101         Operating Income (Loss)       84,963       89,915         Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       -       11,086         Interest Income       13,748       6,747         Interest Expense       (119,716)       (131,203)         Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (170,916)       (101,634)         Change in Net Position </td <td>Office Expense</td> <td>15,448</td> <td>18,197</td>	Office Expense	15,448	18,197
Permits       19,755       19,704         Professional Fees       20,547       24,255         Repairs and Maintenance       62,550       48,146         Salaries and Wages       312,694       269,245         Supplies - Maintenance       63,432       49,211         Telephone       5,818       5,840         Travel       229       761         Uniforms       5,525       4,624         Utilities       72,855       78,041         Vehicle Expenses       72,855       78,041         Fuel       8,660       7,859         Truck       1,139       100         Total Operating Expenses       995,126       938,101         Operating Income (Loss)       84,963       89,915         Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       -       11,086         Interest Income       13,748       6,747         Interest Expense       (119,716)       (131,203)         Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (170,916)       (101,634)         Change in Net Position       (85,954)       (11,719)         Total N	Other	8,638	6,145
Professional Fees       20,547       24,255         Repairs and Maintenance       62,550       48,146         Salaries and Wages       312,694       269,245         Supplies - Maintenance       63,432       49,211         Telephone       5,818       5,840         Travel       229       761         Uniforms       5,525       4,624         Utilities       72,855       78,041         Vehicle Expenses       72,855       78,041         Vehicle Expenses       995,126       938,101         Operating Expenses       995,126       938,101         Operating Income (Loss)       84,963       89,915         Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       -       11,086         Interest Income       13,748       6,747         Interest Expense       (119,716)       (131,203)         Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (170,916)       (101,634)         Change in Net Position       (85,954)       (11,719)         Total Net Position, Beginning       3,233,380       3,245,099 <td>Payroll Taxes</td> <td>24,120</td> <td>20,727</td>	Payroll Taxes	24,120	20,727
Repairs and Maintenance       62,550       48,146         Salaries and Wages       312,694       269,245         Supplies - Maintenance       63,432       49,211         Telephone       5,818       5,840         Travel       229       761         Uniforms       5,525       4,624         Utilities       72,855       78,041         Vehicle Expenses       72,855       78,041         Vehicle Expenses       995,126       938,101         Operating Expenses       995,126       938,101         Operating Revenues (Expenses)       84,963       89,915         Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       11,139       100         Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets       -       11,086         Interest Income       13,748       6,747         Interest Expense       (119,716)       (131,203)         Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (170,916)       (101,634)         Change in Net Position       (85,954)       (11,719)         Total Net Position, Beginning       3,233,380       3,245,099	Permits	19,755	19,704
Salaries and Wages       312,694       269,245         Supplies - Maintenance       63,432       49,211         Telephone       5,818       5,840         Travel       229       761         Uniforms       5,525       4,624         Utilities       72,855       78,041         Vehicle Expenses       72,855       78,041         Fuel       8,660       7,859         Truck       1,139       100         Total Operating Expenses       995,126       938,101         Operating Income (Loss)       84,963       89,915         Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       119,716)       (131,203)         Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (110,716)       (101,634)         Change in Net Position       (85,954)       (11,719)         Total Net Position, Beginning       3,233,380       3,245,099	Professional Fees	20,547	24,255
Supplies - Maintenance       63,432       49,211         Telephone       5,818       5,840         Travel       229       761         Uniforms       5,525       4,624         Utilities       72,855       78,041         Vehicle Expenses       72,855       78,041         Vehicle Expenses       8,660       7,859         Truck       1,139       100         Total Operating Expenses       995,126       938,101         Operating Income (Loss)       84,963       89,915         Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       13,748       6,747         Interest Income       13,748       6,747         Interest Expense       (119,716)       (131,203)         Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (170,916)       (101,634)         Change in Net Position       (85,954)       (11,719)         Total Net Position, Beginning       3,233,380       3,245,099	Repairs and Maintenance	62,550	48,146
Telephone       5,818       5,840         Travel       229       761         Uniforms       5,525       4,624         Utilities       72,855       78,041         Vehicle Expenses       72,855       78,041         Vehicle Expenses       8,660       7,859         Truck       1,139       100         Total Operating Expenses       995,126       938,101         Operating Income (Loss)       84,963       89,915         Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       84,963       89,915         Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets       -       11,086         Interest Income       13,748       6,747         Interest Expense       (119,716)       (131,203)         Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (170,916)       (101,634)         Change in Net Position       (85,954)       (11,719)         Total Net Position, Beginning       3,233,380       3,245,099	Salaries and Wages	312,694	269,245
Travel       229       761         Uniforms       5,525       4,624         Utilities       72,855       78,041         Vehicle Expenses       72,855       78,041         Vehicle Expenses       8,660       7,859         Truck       1,139       100         Total Operating Expenses       995,126       938,101         Operating Income (Loss)       84,963       89,915         Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       84,963       6,747         Interest Income       13,748       6,747         Interest Expense       (119,716)       (131,203)         Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (170,916)       (101,634)         Change in Net Position       (85,954)       (11,719)         Total Net Position, Beginning       3,233,380       3,245,099	Supplies - Maintenance	63,432	49,211
Uniforms       5,525       4,624         Utilities       72,855       78,041         Vehicle Expenses       72,855       78,041         Vehicle Expenses       8,660       7,859         Truck       1,139       100         Total Operating Expenses       995,126       938,101         Operating Income (Loss)       84,963       89,915         Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       84,963       6,747         Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets       -       11,086         Interest Income       13,748       6,747         Interest Expense       (119,716)       (131,203)         Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (170,916)       (101,634)         Change in Net Position       (85,954)       (11,719)         Total Net Position, Beginning       3,233,380       3,245,099	Telephone	5,818	5,840
Utilities       72,855       78,041         Vehicle Expenses       8,660       7,859         Fuel       8,660       7,859         Truck       1,139       100         Total Operating Expenses       995,126       938,101         Operating Income (Loss)       84,963       89,915         Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       84,963       89,915         Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets       -       11,086         Interest Income       13,748       6,747         Interest Expense       (119,716)       (131,203)         Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (170,916)       (101,634)         Change in Net Position       (85,954)       (11,719)         Total Net Position, Beginning       3,233,380       3,245,099	Travel	229	761
Vehicle Expenses         Fuel       8,660       7,859         Truck       1,139       100         Total Operating Expenses       995,126       938,101         Operating Income (Loss)       84,963       89,915         Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       84,963       6,747         Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets       -       11,086         Interest Income       13,748       6,747         Interest Expense       (119,716)       (131,203)         Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (170,916)       (101,634)         Change in Net Position       (85,954)       (11,719)         Total Net Position, Beginning       3,233,380       3,245,099	Uniforms	5,525	4,624
Fuel       8,660       7,859         Truck       1,139       100         Total Operating Expenses       995,126       938,101         Operating Income (Loss)       84,963       89,915         Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       84,963       89,915         Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets       -       11,086         Interest Income       13,748       6,747         Interest Expense       (119,716)       (131,203)         Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (170,916)       (101,634)         Change in Net Position       (85,954)       (11,719)         Total Net Position, Beginning       3,233,380       3,245,099	Utilities	72,855	78,041
Truck       1,139       100         Total Operating Expenses       995,126       938,101         Operating Income (Loss)       84,963       89,915         Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       84,963       89,915         Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets       -       11,086         Interest Income       13,748       6,747         Interest Expense       (119,716)       (131,203)         Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (170,916)       (1101,634)         Change in Net Position       (85,954)       (11,719)         Total Net Position, Beginning       3,233,380       3,245,099	Vehicle Expenses		
Total Operating Expenses995,126938,101Operating Income (Loss)84,96389,915Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)11,086Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets-11,086Interest Income13,7486,747Interest Expense(119,716)(131,203)Bond Issuance Costs Incurred(95,133)-Other Income30,18511,736Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)(170,916)(1101,634)Change in Net Position(85,954)(11,719)Total Net Position, Beginning3,233,3803,245,099	Fuel	8,660	7,859
Operating Income (Loss)84,96389,915Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets-11,086Interest Income13,7486,747Interest Expense(119,716)(131,203)Bond Issuance Costs Incurred(95,133)-Other Income30,18511,736Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)(170,916)(101,634)Change in Net Position, Beginning3,233,3803,245,099	Truck	 1,139	100
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets-11,086Interest Income13,7486,747Interest Expense(119,716)(131,203)Bond Issuance Costs Incurred(95,133)-Other Income30,18511,736Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)(170,916)(101,634)Change in Net Position(85,954)(11,719)Total Net Position, Beginning3,233,3803,245,099	Total Operating Expenses	 995,126	938,101
Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets       -       11,086         Interest Income       13,748       6,747         Interest Expense       (119,716)       (131,203)         Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (170,916)       (101,634)         Change in Net Position       (85,954)       (11,719)         Total Net Position, Beginning       3,233,380       3,245,099	Operating Income (Loss)	 84,963	89,915
Interest Income       13,748       6,747         Interest Expense       (119,716)       (131,203)         Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (170,916)       (101,634)         Change in Net Position       (85,954)       (11,719)         Total Net Position, Beginning       3,233,380       3,245,099	Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)		
Interest Income       13,748       6,747         Interest Expense       (119,716)       (131,203)         Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (170,916)       (101,634)         Change in Net Position       (85,954)       (11,719)         Total Net Position, Beginning       3,233,380       3,245,099	Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets	_	11,086
Interest Expense       (119,716)       (131,203)         Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (170,916)       (101,634)         Change in Net Position       (85,954)       (11,719)         Total Net Position, Beginning       3,233,380       3,245,099		13,748	-
Bond Issuance Costs Incurred       (95,133)       -         Other Income       30,185       11,736         Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)       (170,916)       (101,634)         Change in Net Position       (85,954)       (11,719)         Total Net Position, Beginning       3,233,380       3,245,099	Interest Expense	(119,716)	
Other Income         30,185         11,736           Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)         (170,916)         (101,634)           Change in Net Position         (85,954)         (11,719)           Total Net Position, Beginning         3,233,380         3,245,099	-	,	-
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)         (170,916)         (101,634)           Change in Net Position         (85,954)         (11,719)           Total Net Position, Beginning         3,233,380         3,245,099			11,736
Total Net Position, Beginning3,233,3803,245,099			
	Change in Net Position	 (85,954)	(11,719)
Total Nat Position Ending	Total Net Position, Beginning	 3,233,380	3,245,099
5,147,420 = 5,255,380	Total Net Position, Ending	\$ 3,147,426	\$ 3,233,380

## Varnado Waterworks District Statement of Cash Flows For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2018)

	_	2019		2018
Cash Flows From Operating Activities				
Received From Customers	\$	843,585	\$	844,087
Received for Customer Deposits and Connection Fees		7,946		4,801
Other Receipts		207,104		190,8 <b>7</b> 9
Payments for Operations		(360,252)		(372,868)
Payments to Employees		(369,352)		(321,363)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	_	329,031		345,536
Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities				
Other Receipts		30,185		11,736
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities	_	30,185	_	11,736
Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities				
Capital Contributions Received		-		-
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Acquisitions		-		11,086
(Payments for) Capital Acquisitions		(107,699)		(105,416)
(Payments for) Bond Issue Cost		(95,133)		-
Principal Proceeds of Long Term Debt		2,863, <b>7</b> 99		-
Principal Payments of Long Term Debt		(2,957,815)		(95,100)
Interest Payments for Long Term Debt		(115,154)		(132,662)
Net Cash (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities	_	(412,002)		(322,092)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities				
Receipt of Interest		13,748		6, <b>7</b> 47
Proceeds from sale (Payments) for Investments		-		-
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities		13,748		6,747
Net Cash Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents		(39,038)		41,927
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year		763,673		<b>7</b> 21, <b>7</b> 46
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year	\$_	724,635	\$	763,673
Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents to the Statement of Net Position:				
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Unrestricted	\$	548,638	\$	371,315
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted		175,997		392,358
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents	\$	724,635	\$	763,673

(Continued)

#### Statement C

## Varnado Waterworks District Statement of Cash Flows For the Year Ended December 31, 2019 (With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended December 31, 2018)

	 12/31/19	12/31/18
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used)		
by Operating Activities		
Operating Income (Loss)	\$ 84,963 \$	89,915
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided		
by Operating Activities:		
Depreciation	240,339	256,442
(Increase) decrease in Accounts Receivable	(5,618)	3,216
(Increase) decrease in Due from Other Governments	24,532	(16,696)
(Increase) decrease in Prepaid Insurance	(2,814)	(301)
Increase (decrease) in Accounts Payable	(19,522)	8,860
Increase (decrease) in Accrued Expenses	(795)	(701)
Increase (decrease) in Customer Deposits	7,947	4,801
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities	\$ 329,031 \$	345,536

(Concluded)

# Notes to the Financial Statements

## Introduction

Varnado Waterworks District was established in 1975, by an ordinance of the Washington Parish Council. The ordinance, enacted pursuant to Louisiana Revised Statutes 33:3813, describes and defines the boundaries of the water district, and provides for an eight-member governing board of commissioners appointed by the Washington Parish Council. The District currently serves 1,731 customers as of December 31, 2019. The District's water wells are located approximately five miles north of the Bogalusa, Louisiana, city limits. The system lines run north to the Mississippi state line, south to the Bogalusa city limits, east to Pearl River, and approximately five miles west of Military Road. A project, funded by a loan and grant from the USDA Rural Development Office, was completed during 2008, which extended services to an additional 324 customers in the "Pine Area."

Varnado Waterworks District was thus created and constitutes a public corporation and political subdivision of the State of Louisiana and has all the power and privileges granted by the Constitution and statutes of this state to such subdivision, including the authority to incur debt, to issue bonds, and to levy taxes and assessments.

GASB Statement No. 14, *The Reporting Entity*, as amended, established criteria for determining the governmental reporting entity and component units that should be included within the reporting entity. Under provisions of this Statement, the Varnado Waterworks District is considered a component unit of the Washington Parish Council.

## 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

## A. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The District's financial statements are prepared on the full accrual basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The District applies all Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements as described in the following paragraphs.

These financial statements are presented in conformance with GASB Statement No. 34, *Basic Financial Statements, Management's Discussion and Analysis, for State and Local Governments,* as amended by GASB Statements described in the following paragraphs. Statement No. 34 established standards for financial reporting, with presentation requirements including a statement of net assets (or balance sheet), a statement of activities and changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows. The definition and composition of these statements, as originally defined in GASB Statement No. 34, are as amended by GASB Statements included in the following paragraphs. The District has also adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 33, *Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions*, that require capital contributions to the District be presented as a change in net position.

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, effective for financial statement periods ending after December 15, 2012, provides guidance for reporting deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and net position in a statement of financial position and related disclosures. Concepts Statement No. 4, *Elements of Financial Statements*, introduced and defined *Deferred Outflows of Resources* as a consumption of net position by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period, and *Deferred Inflows of Resources* as an acquisition of net position by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period, respectively. Previous financial reporting standards do not include guidance for reporting those financial statement elements, which are distinct from assets and liabilities. GASB Concepts Statement 4 identifies net position as the residual of all other elements presented in a statement of financial position. This Statement amends the net asset reporting requirements in Statement No. 34, *Basic Financial Statements*—and Management's Discussion and Analysis—for State and Local Governments, and other pronouncements by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and by renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets. The definition and reporting of net position is further described in *Footnote J*–Net Position.

As required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), the District implemented GASB Statement No. 63 during the year ended December 31, 2012. The District did not have any deferred outflows or inflows of resources at December 31, 2018.

The District has also adopted GASB Statement No. 65, *Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities*. This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and liabilities. The application of this standard to long-term debt offerings of the District is more fully described in *Footnote I – Long-Term Debt Obligations*.

All activities of the District are accounted for in a single proprietary (enterprise) fund. Proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprise, where the intent of the governing authority is that the cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing services on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized at the time liabilities are incurred.

The term measurement focus denotes what is being measured and reported in the District's operating statement. Financial operations of the District are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus. With this measurement focus, all of the assets and liabilities, available to the District for the purpose of providing goods and services to the public, are included on the Statement of Net Position. The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position includes all costs of providing goods and services during the period.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the proprietary funds are user charges for the services provided by the enterprise funds. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

## B. Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, and money market accounts. Cash equivalents include amounts in time deposits and those investments with original maturities of three months or less. Under state law, the District may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, money market accounts, or time deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law or any other state of the United States, or under the laws of the United States.

## C. Investments

Investments for the District are reported at fair market value. The state investment pool, LAMP, operates in accordance with state laws and regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool shares. Investments are limited by Louisiana Revised Statute (R.S.) 33:2955 and the District's investment policy.

### D. Inventories

Purchases of various operating supplies are regarded as expenditures at the time purchased, and inventories of such supplies (if any) are not recorded as assets at the close of the fiscal year.

#### E. Prepaid Items

Payments made to vendors that will benefit periods beyond the end of the current calendar year are recorded as prepaid items. Prepaid items consist of prepaid insurance premiums.

### F. Restricted Assets

Certain proceeds of the enterprise fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants. Additionally, funds held for customers' meter deposits are also classified as restricted assets.

#### G. Capital Assets

Capital assets of the District are defined by the District as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than \$500, and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Capital assets are recorded at either historical cost or estimated historical cost. Donated assets, including water systems donated for continued maintenance by the District, are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date donated. Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets is charged as an expense against operations. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

All capital assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Description	Estimated Lives
Buildings	15 - 30 Years
Equipment and Furniture	5 - 7 Years
Utility System	20 - 30 Years

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

#### H. Compensated Absences

The District has the following policy related to vacation and sick leave:

Employees receive two weeks of paid vacation after being employed for one to five years, increasing up to six weeks of vacation for employees with twenty-one years or more service. Employees are not allowed to carry over vacation from one year to the next.

Employees accrue a half a day per month of employment for sick leave up to a maximum of 45 days.

In accordance with GASB-16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, no liability has been accrued for unused employee sick leave.

## I. Long-Term Debt Obligations

Long-term liabilities are recognized within the Enterprise Fund. Bond premiums and discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are now expended in the period incurred under GASB 65.

The District has implemented GASB Statement No. 65, *Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities*, and with the implementation of GASB 65, the recognition of bond-related costs, including the costs related to issuance and refunding of debt, are revised. This standard was intended to compliment GASB Statement No. 63 *Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position*. Bond issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are now expended in the period incurred under GASB 65.

GASB Statement 23, as amended, establishes accounting and financial reporting for current refundings and advance refundings resulting in defeasance of debt. Refundings involve the issuance of new debt whose proceeds are used to repay previously issued ("old") debt. The new debt proceeds may be used to repay the old debt immediately (a current refunding); or the new debt proceeds may be placed with an escrow agent and invested until they are used to pay principal and interest on the old debt at a future time (an advance refunding). As described in paragraphs 3 and 4 of GASB Statement No. 7, *Advance Refundings Resulting in Defeasance of Debt*, an advance refunding may result in the in-substance defeasance of the old debt provided that certain criteria are met.

For current refundings and advance refundings resulting in defeasance of debt reported by governmental activities, business-type activities, and proprietary funds, the difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt should be reported as a deferred outflow of resources or a deferred inflow of resources and recognized as a component of interest expense in a systematic and rational manner over the remaining life of the old debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter.

Paragraph 187 of GASB Statement 62 establishes standards of accounting and financial reporting for debt issuance costs. Paragraph 12 of Statement 7 indicates that debt issuance costs include all costs incurred to issue the bonds, including but not limited to insurance costs (net of rebates from the old debt, if any), financing costs (such as rating agency fees), and other related costs (such as printing, legal, administrative, and trustee expenses). Debt issuance costs, except any portion related to prepaid insurance costs, should be recognized as an expense in the period incurred. Prepaid insurance costs should be reported as an asset and recognized as an expense in a systematic and rational manner over the duration of the related debt.

## J. Net Position

GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements, Management's Discussion and Analysis, for State and Local Governments, required reclassification of net assets into three separate components. GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, revised the terminology by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of the required components of the residual measure and by renaming that measure as net position, rather than net assets. GASB Statement No. 63 requires the following components of net position:

• Net Investment in Capital Assets Component of Net Position - The *net investment in capital assets* component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the

acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets or related debt also should be included in this component of net position. If there are significant unspent related debt proceeds or deferred inflows of resources at the end of the reporting period, the portion of the debt or deferred inflows of resources attributable to the unspent amount should not be included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. Instead, that portion of the debt or deferred inflows of resources should be included in the same net position component (restricted or unrestricted) as the unspent amount.

- **Restricted Component of Net Position** The *restricted* component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. Generally, a liability relates to restricted assets if the asset results from a resource flow that also results in the recognition of a liability or if the liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets reported.
- Unrestricted Component of Net Position The *unrestricted* component of net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the restricted component of net position.

## K. Comparative Data/Reclassifications

The financial statements are presented with certain prior year summarized comparative information. Such information does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018, from which summarized information was derived.

Certain amounts presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year's presentation. All prior period adjustments recorded in the current period have been reflected in prior period data presented wherever possible.

## L. Extraordinary and Special Items

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence. Special items are transactions or events within the control of the District, which are either unusual in nature or infrequent in occurrence.

### M. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

## 2. Cash and Cash Equivalents

At December 31, 2019 and 2018, the District has cash and cash equivalents (book balances) totaling, as follows:

	]	December 31, 2019		December 31, 2018
Demand Deposits	\$	310,591	\$	294,410
Time & Savings Accounts		118,023		111,669
Money Market Accounts		215,960		212,258
Louisiana Asset Management Pool		80,061	_	145,336
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents	_	724,635	-	763,673
Certificates of Deposits Held in Investments (See Note 3)	_	225,000		225,000
Total Deposits	\$_	949,635	\$	988,673

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are held in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties.

At December 31, 2019, the District has \$660,865 in deposits (collected bank balances), consisting of \$312,919 in demand deposits within three separate banks and \$347,946 in time and savings accounts, including certificates of deposits held as investments, within three separate banks. The demand deposits and the time and savings accounts are secured from risk by \$250,000 of federal deposit insurance at each financial institution and also have access to pledged securities held by the custodial bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank (GASB Category 3).

Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the provisions of GASB Statement 3, Louisiana Revised Statute 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within 10 days of being notified by the District that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand.

## 3. Investments

Investments are categorized into these three categories of credit risk:

- 1. Insured or registered, or securities held by the District or its agent in the District's name
- 2. Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty's trust department or agent in the District's name
- 3. Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the District's name

All investments held by the District fall into category 1 credit risk, defined as "insured or registered, or securities held by the District or its agent in the District's name." In accordance with GASB 31, *Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools*, all investments are carried at fair market value, with the estimated fair market value based on quoted market prices.

At December 31, 2019, the District's investment balances were as follows:

	Maturity Date	Carrying Amount	Fair Market Value
LPL Financial - Money Market	§	5 117,121	\$ 117,121
		117,121	117,121
Certificates of Deposit:			
Citizens Savings Bank	March 9, 2020	10,000	10,000
Whitney National Bank	August 21, 2020	70,000	70,000
Citizens Savings Bank	October 13, 2021	45,000	45,000
Citizens Savings Bank	July 19, 2022	100,000	100,000
	Total §	5 225,000	\$ 225,000

All investments are stated on the balance sheet (carrying value) at market value. All investments are in the name of the District. Because these investments are in the name of the District and are held by the District or the District's agent, the investments are considered insured and registered, Category (1), in applying the credit risk of GASB Codification Section I50.164.

Interest Rate Risk: The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value arising from increasing interest rates.

In accordance with GASB Codification Section I50.165, the investment in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) at December 31, 2019, is not categorized in the three risk categories provided by GASB Codification Section I50.164 because the investment is in the pool of funds and therefore not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form. The investment in LAMP is stated at the value of the pool shares, which is the same as the fair value. LAMP is administered by LAMP, Inc., a non-profit corporation organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana, which was formed by an initiative of the State Treasurer in 1993. The corporation is governed by a board of directors comprised of the State Treasurer, representatives from various organizations of local government, the Government Finance Office Association of Louisiana, and the Society of Louisiana CPAs. Only local government entities having contracted to participate in LAMP have an investment interest in its pool of assets. The primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the placement of public funds in short-term, high quality investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest. LAMP is subject to the regulator oversight of the state treasurer and the board of directors. LAMP is not registered with the SEC as an investment company.

While LAMP is not required to be a registered investment company under the Investment Company Act of 1940, its investment policies are similar to those established by Rule 2a7, which governs registered money market funds. The primary objective of LAMP is to provide a safe environment for the placement of public funds in short-term, high quality investments. The LAMP portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest in accordance with LSA-R.S. 33:2955.

GASB 40, *Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosure*, requires disclosure of credit risk, custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk for all public entity investments.

LAMP is a 2a7 – like investment pool. The following facts are relevant for 2a7 like investment pools:

- 1. <u>Credit risk:</u> LAMP is rated AAA by Standards and Poor's.
- 2. <u>Custodial credit risk</u>: LAMP participants' investments in the pool are evidenced by shares of the pool. Investments in pools should be disclosed, but not categorized because they are not evidenced by securities

that exist in physical or book-entry form. The public entity's investment is with the pool, not the securities that make up the pool; therefore, no disclosure is required.

- 3. <u>Concentration of credit risk</u>: Pooled investments are excluded from the five percent disclosure requirement.
- 4. <u>Interest rate risk</u>: 2a7-like investment pools are excluded from this disclosure requirement per paragraph 15 of the GASB 40 statement. However, LAMP prepares its own interest rate risk disclosure using the weighted average maturity (WAM) method. The WAM of LAMP assets is restricted to not more than 60 days and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days. The WAM for LAMP's total investments, as provided by LAMP, is 47 days as of December 31, 2019.
- 5. <u>Foreign currency risk</u>: Not applicable to 2a7-like pools.

LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to give its participants immediate access to their account balances. The investments in LAMP are stated at fair value based on quoted market rates. The fair value is determined on a weekly basis by LAMP and the value of the position in the external investment pool is the same as the net asset value of the pool shares.

LAMP, Inc., is subject to the regulatory oversight of the state treasurer and the board of directors. LAMP is not registered with the SEC as an investment company. LAMP, Inc., issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for LAMP, Inc. That report may be obtained by calling (800) 249-5267.

## 4. Receivables

The following is a summary of receivables at December 31, 2019 and 2018:

	Year Ended December 31, 2019		Year Ended December 31, 2018		Increase (Decrease)
Accounts Receivable		•		• •	
Current	\$ 69,190	\$	67,411	\$	1,779
31-60 Days Past Due	4,557		4,384		173
61-90 Days Past Due	1,827		2,172		(345)
Over 90 Days Past Due	1,940		(971)		2,911
Subtotal	77,514		72,996		4,518
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts	(4,847)		(2,344)		(2,503)
Net Accounts Receivable	\$ 72,667	\$	70,652	\$	2,015
Accrued Billings Due from Other Governments	13,477		12,711		766
Due from Bogue Lusa Waterworks	23,483		39,707		(16,224)
Due (to) from Washington Gas District 1	4,862		13,169		(8,308)
Total Receivables	\$ 114,488	\$	136,239	· -	(21,751)

All customer receivables are reported at gross value and reduced by the portion that is expected to be uncollectible. Periodically, the board reviews the aging of receivables and determines the actual amount uncollectible. Per board approval, uncollectible amounts are written off against accounts receivable, and the allowance for doubtful accounts is adjusted to a reasonable estimate of uncollectibility.

Estimated unbilled revenues (accrued billings) are recognized at the end of each fiscal year on a pro-rata basis. The estimated amount is based on billing during the month following the close of the fiscal year. At December 31, 2019, accrued billings amounts were \$13,477, and \$12,711 at December 31, 2018.

## 5. Restricted Assets

The following is a summary of restricted assets at December 31, 2019 and 2018:

		December	December
	_	31, 2019	 31, 2018
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents			
Customer Deposits	\$	94,703	\$ 85,394
Bond Reserve Account		48,980	155,339
Bond Contingency Account		-	120,475
Bond Sinking Account		32,314	 31,150
Total Restricted Assets	\$	175,997	\$ 392,358

## 6. Capital Assets

A summary of changes in capital assets during the fiscal year ending December 31, 2019, is as follows:

	_	Beginning Balance 12/31/18	 Additions and Reclassifications	 Deletions and Reclassifications	 Ending Balance 12/31/19
Capital Assets Being Depreciated					
Buildings	\$	151,180	\$ -	\$ -	\$ 151,180
Equipment		259,669	12,045		271,714
Utility System		9,617,002	15,536	-	9,632,538
Vehicles	_	107,078	 6,875	 -	 113,953
Total Capital Assets Being Depreciated		10,134,929	34,456	-	10,169,385
Less Accumulated Depreciation		(4,959,505)	(240,339)		(5,199,844)
Capital Assets Being Depreciated, Net	_	5,175,424	(205,883)	-	 4,969,541
Land		105,512	-	-	105,512
Construction in Progress		-	74,093	-	74,093
Total Capital Assets, Net	\$	5,280,936	\$ (131,790)	\$ -	\$ 5,149,146

Equipment, furniture, and fixtures are depreciated using the useful lives of five to ten years, and the water distribution system uses a useful life of twenty to thirty years. All assets are depreciated under the straight-line method. Capital Assets decreased \$131,790 as a result of the following activity:

- 1) A new directional bore for \$15,536
- 2) A trailer purchased for \$6,875
- 3) New equipment for \$12,045
- 4) Construction in progress related to the new well on Mitch Road for \$74,093, and
- 5) Current year depreciation of \$240,340.

## 7. Long-Term Obligations

The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions for the year ended December 31, 2019:

	Beginning			Ending	Due Within
Description	 Balance	 Additions	 Deletions	Balance	 One Year
Long-Term Debt					
2007 Water Revenue Bond	\$ 2,915,815	\$ -	\$ (2,915,815) \$	-	\$ -
2011 Water Rev. Bond Refunding	225,000	-	(42,000)	183,000	44,000
2019 Water Revenue Refunding		 2,920,000	 	2,920,000	25,000
Total Long-Term Debt	\$ 3,140,815	\$ 2,920,000	\$ (2,957,815) \$	3,103,000	\$ 69,000
Less:					
Unamortized Discount	 -	 (56,201)	 -	(56,201)	(2,082)
Total Long Term Debt	\$ 3,140,815	\$ 2,863,799	\$ (2,957,815) \$	3,046,799	\$ 66,918

## Bonds Payables as of December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

		December 31, 2019	December 31, 2018
<b>Revenue</b> Bond	\$ 651,000		
Water Revenue Bor	ds - RUS 91-07 sold to Rural Utility Service		
Dated 3/29/2007	due in monthly installments of principal and interest of		
\$ 2,806	through 5/1/2047 interest at 4.125%	\$ - \$	559,116
<b>Revenue Bond</b>	\$ 2,744,000		
Water Revenue Bor	ds - RUS 91-08 sold to Rural Utility Service		
Dated 3/29/2007	due in monthly installments of principal and interest of		
\$ 11,827	through 5/1/2047 interest at 4.125%	-	2,356,699
<b>Revenue</b> Bond	\$ 462,000		
Water Revenue Bor	ids -Series 2011 Refunding sold to Rural Utility Service		
Dated 8/25/2011	due in annual installments of principal and semi-annual interest averaging		
\$ 48,439	through 3/1/2023 interest at 4.20%	183,000	225,000
Revenue Bond	\$ 2,920,000		
Water Revenue Bor	ds -Series 2019 Refunding sold privately		
Dated 11/19/2019	due in annual installments of principal and semi-annual interest averaging		
\$ 54,281	through 11/1/2046 interest from 2% to 3%	2,920,000	
		\$ 3,103,000 \$	3,140,815

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of December 31, 2019, including interest payments of \$1,426,789 are as follows:

Year Ending		Series 2011Series 2019WaterWaterRevenueRevenueRefundingRefunding		Water Revenue			
12/31/19	_	\$ 462,000		\$	2,920,000	_	Total
2020	\$	50,762			102,698	\$	153,460
2021		50,872			116,288		167,160
2022		50,898			115,588		166,486
2023		45,945			119,888		165,833
2024		-			169,088		169,088
2025 to 2029		-			840,513		840,513
2030 to 2034		-			841,650		841,650
2035 to 2039		-			845,400		845,400
2040 to 2044		-			840,500		840,500
2045 to 2046		-			339,700		339,700
	\$	198,477	\$		4,331,313	\$	4,529,790

### 8. Flow of Funds, Restrictions on Use

As of December 31, 2019, the bond restrictions apply to parity bond obligations of outstanding bonds of Varnado Waterworks District and include the two issues of the 2007 Water Revenue Bonds, and the Series 2011 Refunding Bonds. Bond descriptions and covenants are as follows:

During the fiscal year ending December 31, 2009, construction was completed for the Pine Area system improvements. Interim financing totaling \$3,395,000 was obtained to finance the system improvements, with permanent financing to be provided by the USDA Rural Development Office. Interim financing was paid off March 29, 2007 by USDA Rural Development financing with a refunding totaling \$3,547,775. The payment of \$3,547,775 consisted of payoff of principal totaling \$3,395,000 plus \$152,775 accumulated interest, capitalized as construction period interest. The USDA Rural Development Office refunded the interim loan with the issuance of two Water Revenue Bonds, both dated March 29, 2007, and both issued at an annual interest rate of 4.125%.

The first bond issue totals \$651,000, and the second issue totals \$2,744,000, for a combined total of \$3,395,000. Both of the bond issues specify that the bond shall be payable over a forty (40) year period, with the first payment consisting of interest only which fell due on April 1, 2008 and will be paid thereafter in Four Hundred Eighty (480) consecutive monthly payments commencing May 1, 2008 and continuing through May 1, 2047 unless the principal amount hereof is prepaid in whole or in part in accordance with the terms set forth in the Bond Resolution. Each payment shall be applied first to the payment of accrued interest, and second to the payment of principal. For the issue totaling \$651,000, bond terms require a total monthly principal and interest payment of \$2,805.81, and for the \$2,744,000 bond issue a total monthly principal and interest payment of \$11,826.64. With the payoff of interim financing and the issuance of long-term financing provided

by the USDA Rural Development, the District recorded a total of \$65,193 in bond issuance costs, to be amortized over the life of the bonds.

During the fiscal year ending December 31, 2011, the April 13, 1988, bonds originally issued at \$925,000 were refunded with a cash payment of \$522,045. Sources of funding were issuance of Series 2011 Water Refunding Bonds at \$462,000, plus the District provided funds of \$68,951 from the existing Reserve Fund, and \$57,531 from the existing Depreciation and Contingency Fund to complete the refunding transaction. Proceeds of the issue and funds provided by the District also provided for advance funding of \$46,200 to fully fund the Series 2011 Debt Reserve Fund, and \$20,237 to fund the costs of issuance and other costs. The Series 2011 Refunding Bonds, issued at annual interest rate of 4.2% on August 25, 2011, are payable in semi-annual installments for interest and annual installments of principal and mature on March 1, 2023.

During the year ending December 31, 2019, the District issued \$2,920,000 in Water Refunding Bonds, Series 2019 at a discount of \$56,202 with the purpose of refunding the outstanding USDA bonds and paying the costs of issuance. The bonds were sold to a private lender. These bonds maturing from November 1, 2024 to 2046 carry interest rates ranging from two to three percent and are payable in annual installments of principal and semi-annual installments of interest. The District refunded the outstanding \$551,495 Loan 07 and \$2,324,581 Loan 08 in USDA water revenue bonds with the Series 2019 bond proceeds and an additional \$108,639 from prior reserve fund. The District incurred and expensed \$95,133 in bond issuance costs associated with the issuance of Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series in the year December 31, 2019.

Due to the refunding of debt, previous debt service of \$4,782,272 was replaced by debt service of \$4,331,311 after refunding, resulting in an increase in cash flow of \$450,691. A recap of net present value benefits and cash savings for the Water Revenue Refunding bonds, Series 2019 issue is presented below:

## PV Analysis Summary (Gross to Gross) for Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2019

Gross PV Debt Service Savings Transfers from Prior Issue DSR Fund	\$ 390,086 (108,639)
Net Present Value Benefit	\$ 281,447
Net PV Benefit / \$2,868,943 Refunded Principal	9.810%
Net PV Benefit / \$2,920,000 Refunding Principal	9.639%

Under the terms of the bond issue, the bonds are payable as to principal and interest solely from the income and revenues derived from the operations of the combined water system of the District after provisions have been made for the payment of the reasonable and necessary expenses of administering, operating, and maintaining of the system. Total interest expense from all water revenue bonds equaled \$119,716 for the year ending December 31, 2019. The gross water revenue recognized during the current period was \$830,040.

Each of the water revenue bonds specify the establishment and maintenance of a separately identifiable fund or account designated as the "Water System Bond Revenue Sinking Fund" (the Sinking Fund) sufficient in amount to pay promptly and fully the principal and interest on the Bonds and any Additional Parity Bonds, as they severally become due and payable, by transferring from the Revenue Fund to the agent of the Issuer, monthly on or before the 20<sup>th</sup> day of each month of each year, such proportionate amount of the principal and interest sufficient to make the Debt Service payment due on the next Interest Payment Date. Money in the Sinking Fund shall be deposited as trust funds and shall be fully sufficient to assure the prompt payment of principal and interest

installments as they become due and may be used only for such payments. Alternately, the fiscal agent has set up a payment schedule whereby the District makes payments directly to the debt service account in which payments are made from. This eliminates the need of the "Bond and Interest Sinking Fund" for the Series 2019 Bonds, but is required for the 2011 Series Refunding Bonds. At December 31, 2019, the 2011 Series Sinking Fund was fully-funded with a balance of \$32,314.

Bond covenants for the Series 2011 Water Revenue Bonds also require funds be set aside into a "Water Revenue Bond Account". The Series 2011 Debt Service Reserve Fund was fully funded with a deposit of \$46,200 at the bond closing on August 25, 2011. At December 31, 2019, the Series 2011 Debt Service Reserve Fund was fully funded at \$48,980.

At issuance of the Series 2019 Water Revenue Refunding bonds, an insurance policy was purchased to be drawn upon in the event there are not enough funds to cover the principal and interest payments as they become due. In the resolution of the 2019 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2019, page three, paragraph three, states that the District will "fund a reserve fund for the bonds, via paying the cost of a reserve policy as defined in the bond resolution." Therefore, no such account is needed for the 2019 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds.

A Depreciation and Contingency Fund is created to care for depreciation, extensions, additions, improvements, and replacements necessary to operate the system. Neither Water Revenue Refunding bonds, Series 2011 and Series 2019, require such funds.

As note, the Series 2019 Bonds were issued in parity with the Series 2011 Bonds. Both bond issues require the following covenants:

The Issuer, through its Governing Authority by proper resolution and/or resolutions, hereby covenants to fix, establish, maintain and collect such rates, fees, rents or other charges for services and facilities of the system, and all parts thereof, and to revise the same from time to time whenever necessary, as will always provide revenues in each fiscal year, sufficient to pay the reasonable operating and maintenance expenses of the system in each fiscal year and all other payments required for such fiscal year with respect thereto and as will provide "Net Revenues" at least equal to 120% of the principal and interest falling due in such fiscal year on the bonds, the outstanding parity bonds and any additional parity bonds or other obligations of the system. "Net Revenues," per applicable bond provisions, means the revenues, after provision has been made for payment therefrom of the reasonable and necessary expenses of maintaining and operating the system.

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2019, Net Revenues were computed to be above the 120 percent threshold of the average annual debt service requirements on all bonds held outstanding for the system at a computed ratio of 178 percent.

### 9. Restricted and Designated Net Position

At December 31, 2019, Varnado Waterworks District recorded \$81,294 in Restricted Net Assets (Restricted for Capital Activity and Debt Service), representing the District's funds restricted by revenue bond debt covenants, contracts with customers for meter deposits, and the unspent portion of capital debt related to amounts restricted for capital projects less liabilities related to these restricted funds. A liability relates to restricted assets if the asset results from incurring the liability or if the liability will be liquidated with the restricted assets.

### **10.** Intergovernmental Agreement

The Varnado Waterworks District has a service agreement with the Bogue Lusa Water Works District and the Washington Parish Gas District Number One, also known as Varnado Gas District. The Varnado Waterworks

District will perform all necessary functions involving billing of customers, collection of customer's accounts, keeping and furnishing necessary financial information and records on a monthly basis for Bogue Lusa Water Works District and Varnado Gas District. The Varnado Waterworks District also performs meter reading for Varnado Gas District, which is included in the administrative costs. Bogue Lusa Water Works is independently responsible for its meter reading expenses. The per customer monthly fee for Bogue Lusa Water Works for this service was \$2.60, and \$3.00 per customer per month for Varnado Gas District, payable monthly. The rate for Varnado Gas District includes \$2.35 for billing and \$0.65 per customer for meter reading.

Varnado Waterworks District will provide all system repair and maintenance customarily done by its own personnel. Accurate hourly records of personnel records involved in repairs shall be kept and Bogue Lusa Water Works District and Varnado Gas District will be billed monthly at two times the employees' hourly rate. All materials, parts and supplies will be paid directly by the District which incurred the cost. Varnado Waterworks District employees will keep accurate mileage records for the service truck used for maintenance and repairs and will bill the other districts at an agreed-upon rate per mile for work done on their respective systems. Periodically, an accounting will be made of the costs of the services provided under the agreement. Cash settlements will be made between the Districts, so each District pays its portion of the actual costs.

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2018, billing fees charged to Other Governments was \$195,772 for Bogue Lusa Water District, and \$15,568 charged to Washington Parish Gas District No. 1.

## 11. Litigation and Claims

There is no outstanding litigation at December 31, 2019.

### 12. Contingent Liabilities

There are no contingent liabilities at December 31, 2019.

### 13. Subsequent Events

Effective January 1, 2020 the effective base water rate for residential and commercial customers will increase by \$1.00. This is due to the increase of the operating expenditures of the District.

The intergovernmental agreement between Bogue Lusa Waterworks District and Varnado Waterworks District was amended as of February 1, 2020. The customer billing rate will increase from \$2.60 to \$3.45 payable monthly to offset some of the administrative costs. In addition, the billing rate will increase from two times the employees' hourly rate to three times sand the mileage will correspond to that in accordance with IRS standards.

Bids for the Mitch Road well project was received and publicly opened on January 29, 2020 at the Washington Parish Government Office. The low bidder was Griner Drilling Service, Inc. for \$1,278,000. A change order was executed on April 7, 2002 for a decrease of \$75,752.50. The contract was decreased to \$1,202,947.50. The project will be funded with a Louisiana Community Development Block Grant for \$1,048,000. Funds will flow through to the Washington Parish Government. Construction costs will be paid by the Washington Parish Government using the grant funds. At completion of the project, the well will be transferred to Varnado Waterworks District. Any contract costs that are over the grant funds will be paid by the District. All engineering, testing, and administration costs will be paid by the District.

Shortly before the end of the fiscal year, the district applied for a grant for well restoration for \$143,000. As of the date of these financial statements, the grant had not been awarded to the District.

The financial statements considered subsequent events through October 20, 2020 the date the financial statements were available to be issued. No events were noted that require recording or disclosure in the financial statements for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2019.

Other Supplemental Information

#### Varnado Waterworks District Budgetary Comparison Schedule For the year ended December 31, 2019 (With Comparative Amounts for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2018)

		2019 Budget		2019 Actual		Variance Favorable (Unfavorable)	2018 Actual
Operating Revenues	-	Duuget		Actual		(Ulliavorable)	Actual
Water Sales	\$	835,000	\$	830,040	\$	(4,960) \$	817,509
Installations	Ψ	7,000	Ψ	7,200	Ψ	200	6,900
Penalties		20,000		19,756		(244)	19,628
Billing Fees		192,900		211,340		18,440	168,061
Reconnect Fees		6,000		5,625		(375)	5,350
Other		5,500		6,128		628	10,568
Total Operating Revenues	-	1,066,400		1,080,089		13,689	1,028,016
Operating Expenses							
Advertising		2,400		2,191		209	-
Bad Debts		1,900		4,371		(2,471)	3,310
Conventions & Seminars		-		-		-	392
Depreciation		255,000		240,339		14,661	256,442
Director's Fees		3,100		3,060		40	3,220
Employee Benefits		62,790		56,658		6,132	52,118
Insurance		50,000		45,982		4,018	46,423
Contract - Meter Specialist		23,000		21,115		1,885	23,341
Office Expense		16,000		15,448		552	18,197
Other		8,480		8,638		(158)	6,145
Payroll Taxes		25,040		24,120		920	20,727
Permits		19,800		19,755		45	19,704
Professional Fees		20,115		20,547		(432)	24,255
Repairs and Maintenance		65,500		62,550		2,950	48,146
Salaries and Wages		313,000		312,694		306	269,245
Supplies - Maintenance		67,000		63,432		3,568	49,211
Telephone		6,000		5,818		182	5,840
Travel		300		229		71	761
Uni forms		5,500		5,525		(25)	4,624
Utilities		75,000		72,855		2,145	78,041
Vehicle Expenses	_	9,800		9,799		1	7,959
Total Operating Expenses	-	1,029,725		995,126	•	34,599	938,101
Operating Income (Loss)	_	36,675		84,963		48,288	89,915
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)							
Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets	5	-		-		-	11,086
Interest Income		8,900		13,748		4,848	6,747
Interest Expense		(132,500)		(119,716)		12,784	(131,203)
Bond Issuance Costs				(95,133)		(95,133)	-
Other Income	_	32,000		30,185		(1,815)	11,736
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)	-	(91,600)		(170,916)		(79,316)	(101,634)
Change in Net Position	_	(54,925)		(85,954)		(31,029)	(11,719)
Total Net Position, Beginning	-	3,233,380		3,233,380		-	3,245,099
Total Net Position, Ending	\$	3,178,455		3,147,426	\$	(31,029) \$	3,233,380

## Varnado Waterworks District Schedule of Insurance For the year ended December 31, 2019

Insurance Company /	For the year chucu beechiber 5	1, 201	,		
Policy Number	Coverage		Amount	Perio	d
Western Surety Company	Fidelity Bond Coverage:			11/16/2019 to	11/15/2020
18216102	Employee Dishonesty	\$	100,000		
	Forgery and Alteration		100,000		
	Theft, Disappearance		100,000		
	Computer Fraud		50,000		
American Alternative					
Insurance Co.	Commercial General Liability:				
GPPA-PF-6053997-03	General Aggregate		3,000,000	2/28/2019 to	2/28/2020
	Per Occurrence Limits		1,000,000		
	Damage to Premises Rented		1,000,000		
	Medical Expense Per Accident		10,000		
	Personal and Advertising Injury		1,000,000		
	Products-Completed Operations Aggregate		3,000,000		
	Public Officials and Management Liability		1,000,000		
	Commercial Property		2,548,170		
	Crime Coverage		100,000		
	Cyber Crime Liability		1,000,000		
	Business Auto:				
	Liability		1,000,000		
	Uninsured Motorist		1,000,000		
	Underinsured Motorists		1,000,000		
	Comprehensive	A	As scheduled		
	Collision	ŀ	As scheduled		
	Medical Payments		5,000		
Louisiana Workers Comp.	Workers Compensation:			4/8/2019 to	4/7/2020
105384-В	Accident		100,000		
	Policy Limit		500,000		
	Each Employee		100,000		
C					

## Varnado Waterworks District Schedule of Compensation Paid to Board of Commissioners For the year ended December 31, 2019

	for the year chucu becchiber 51, 20	1/		
Name and Title / Contact Number	Address	(	Compensation Received	Term Expiration
Freddie Jefferson, President (985) 986-2460	31110 School Road Angie, LA 70426	\$	720	12/31/21
Ronald Owens, Commissioner (985) 735-6111	26183 Highway 21 Angie, LA 70426		780	12/31/24
Argil Boone, Commissioner (985) 735-5890	61768 Seal Road Angie, LA 70426		60	12/31/20
Tommy Terrell, Commissioner (985) 848-5820	53668 Highway 62 Franklinton, LA 70438		780	12/31/22
Joe Lewis, Commissioner (985) 735-9863	64023 Recreation Center Road Angie, LA 70426		720	12/31/23
		\$	3,060	

## Varnado Waterworks District Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head For the year ended December 31, 2019

Agency Head	Name:	Freddie	Jefferson,	President
-------------	-------	---------	------------	-----------

Purpose		Amount		
Per diem- Board Member	\$	720		

18

## Varnado Waterworks District Schedule of Water Rates For the year ended December 31, 2019

 Water					
	Residential Rates				Commercial Rates
\$ 24.00 -	First 2,000 Gallons	\$	56.00	-	First 15,000 Gallons
3.00 -	Per 1,000 Gallons of Water over 2,000 Gallons		4.00	-	Per 1,000 Gallons of Water over 15,000 Gallons

 Water Rates for Pine					
	Residential Rates				Commercial Rates
\$ 25.50 -	First 5,000 Gallons	\$	58.40	-	First 5,000 Gallons
3.00 -	Per 1,000 Gallons of Water over 5,000 Gallons		4.00	-	Per 1,000 Gallons of Water over

See independent auditor's report.

# Schedule of Water Customers as of December 31, 2019 and 2018

	December 31, 2019	December 31, 2018	Increase (Decrease)
Customers			
Residential	1, <b>7</b> 02	1,6 <b>77</b>	25
Commercial	22	22	-
Schools	6	6	-
Prison	1	1	-
Total Customers	1,731	1,706	25

Commercial users having a meter size larger than the residential size (3/4")

## Minda B. Raybourn

Certified Public Accountant Limited Liability Company 820 11<sup>th</sup> Avenue Franklinton, Louisiana 70438 (985) 839-4413 Fax (985) 839-4402

Member AICPA Member LCPA

#### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Commissioners Varnado Waterworks District Washington Parish Council Varnado, LA

I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type activities, of Varnado Waterworks District, a component unit of the Washington Parish Council, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Varnado Waterworks District's basic financial statements and have issued my report thereon dated October 20, 2020.

### **Internal Control over Financial Reporting**

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, I considered the Varnado Waterworks District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal control. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Varnado Waterworks District's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance

My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these limitations, during my audit, I did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that I consider material weaknesses or significant deficiencies.

## **Compliance and Other Matters**

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Varnado Waterworks District's financial statements are free from material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

## Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Mínda Raybourn

Franklinton, Louisiana October 20, 2020

## Varnado Waterworks District, Louisiana

## Schedule of Current Year Audit Findings For the Year Ended December 31, 2019

Unmodified

## Section 1 - Summary of Auditor's Results

Type of auditor's report	t issued	

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weaknesses identified?	Yes	<u> </u>
Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses?	Yes	<u>_X</u> _No
Noncompliance material to the financial statements noted?	Yes	<u>X</u> _No

## Minda B. Raybourn

Certified Public Accountant Limited Liability Company 820 11<sup>th</sup> Avenue Franklinton, Louisiana 70438 (985) 839-4413 Fax (985) 839-4402

MEMBER A.I.C.P.A. MEMBER L.C.P.A.

## INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

Mr. Freddie Jefferson, Chairman, Varnado Water Works District And Board of Commissioners And the Louisiana Legislative Auditor:

We have performed the procedures enumerated below, which were agreed to by Varnado Water Works District (Entity) and the Louisiana Legislative Auditor (LLA) on the control and compliance (C/C) areas identified in the LLA's Statewide Agreed-Upon Procedures (SAUPs) for the fiscal period January 1, 2019 through December 31, 2019. The Entity's management is responsible for those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs.

This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and applicable standards of *Government Auditing Standards*. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely the responsibility of the specified users of this report. Consequently, we make no representation regarding the sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for any other purpose.

The procedures and associated findings are as follows:

## Written Policies and Procedures

- 1. Obtain and inspect the entity's written policies and procedures and observe that they address each of the following categories and subcategories (if applicable to public funds and the entity's operations):
  - a) *Disaster Recovery/Business Continuity*, including (1) identification of critical data and frequency of data backups, (2) storage of backups in a separate physical location isolated from the network, (3) periodic testing/verification that backups can be restored, (4) use of antivirus software on all systems, (5) timely application of all available system and software patches/updates, and (6) identification of personnel, processes, and tools needed to recover operations after a critical event.

The District does not have disaster recovery/business continuity policies and procedures.

Management Response: We will obtain policies and procedures for disaster recovery/business continuity.

## **Bank Reconciliations**

- 2. Obtain a listing of client bank accounts for the fiscal period from management and management's representation that the listing is complete. Ask management to identify the entity's main operating account. Select the entity's main operating account and randomly select 4 additional accounts (or all accounts if less than 5). Randomly select one month from the fiscal period, obtain and inspect the corresponding bank statement and reconciliation for selected each account, and observe that:
- a) Bank reconciliations include evidence that they were prepared within 2 months of the related statement closing date (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged);

## The bank reconciliations were reconciled timely.

b) Bank reconciliations include evidence that a member of management/board member who does not handle cash, post ledgers, or issue checks has reviewed each bank reconciliation (e.g., initialed and dated, electronically logged); and

### The external accountant reconciles the bank statements.

c) Management has documentation reflecting that it has researched reconciling items that have been outstanding for more than 12 months from the statement closing date, if applicable.

### There were no exceptions.

### Other

3. Obtain a listing of misappropriations of public funds and assets during the fiscal period and management's representation that the listing is complete. Select all misappropriations on the listing, obtain supporting documentation, and observe that the entity reported the misappropriation(s) to the legislative auditor and the district attorney of the parish in which the entity is domiciled.

## Management asserted there were no misappropriations.

4. Observe that the entity has posted on its premises and website, the notice required by R.S. 24:523.1 concerning the reporting of misappropriation, fraud, waste, or abuse of public funds.

### No exceptions noted.

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of testing performed on those C/C areas identified in the SAUPs, and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on control or compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the LLA as a public document.

minda Raybour

Minda Raybourn CPA Franklinton, LA 70438

October 20, 2020